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LEOKARD HUUSE - 118-120 High 3treet

118 and 120 High Street were originally one large frame
house of about 20 rooms constructed in 1790, by Dr. and
Mrs. William Robertson. In 18%2, after changying ownership
several times, tiie property was purchased by Capt. James
C. Leonard, who operated the proterty as a hotel known as
the "Leonard House". It was a convenient stovping place for
travelers by steamboat and sailing vessels. In 1906,
Capt. Leonard decided to discontinue the hotel. He split
the house in half, moving what is now 118 High Street a
distance of about 15 feet. Although 118 still retains the
original woodwork on the interior, 120 was completely reno-

vated around tie turn of the century.
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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT 4 4D ORIGINAL (if known) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

This building and the one next door, 118 High Street,
were originally one large house of about 20 rooms that
was constructed in 1790, The original appearance of the
exterior is not known, however. In 1906 the house was
split in half, and what is now 118 was moved a distance
of about 15 feet., Although 118 High Street retains the
original paneling and woodwork on the interior,120 was
apparently renovated around the same time the house was
divided ™

Zlthough the exterior of the two houses are similar
in appearance, there are differences., Both are two and
one-half story frame houses with German siding, and a
one story front porch. 120 High Street is a four bay
structure with a gable roof with center gable. 118 EHigh
Street consists of three bavs across the front but has a
jerkin head roof. It is estimated the the front porch
with hand carved railing was added in 1859, The crafts-
manship of the porch on 120 High Street is not as fine
as that of 118, however, and is apparently not the
original. This porch, supportec¢ by turned. posts and
brackets, has a ballustrade and gallery with turned
spindles. Corner brackets witl@ tracery ornamentation
support the gallery. The vorclh is further enbellishadby
a row of dentils and a circle motif under the cornice
of the porch. The center gable has a pointed arched
window and is flanked by a gabled dormer on eitner side.
On the south side of the building is a twc story poly-
gonal bay window. & wing has been added to the rear.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

Historv:

The lot on which this building stands, originally
running from xigh sStreet back to Cambridge Creek, was
purchased in 1739 by Dr. william Murray and conveyed
to his daughter, Margaret, wife of Edward Trippe. The
property eventually passed to Henrietta Murray, wife
of Dr, william Xobertson, who had the house built in
1750,

This nouse and the one next door, 118 high street,
were originally one large house of about 20 rooms.
After tne death of Dr. and lirs. Robertson, the propertv
descended to their children. The property remained in
the same family a total of 114 years, f£rom 1739 until
1853, when it was sold to Lewis Ross, The next owner
was william Thomas, and at his death in 1892, the
Property was wurchased by Capt. Jdames C, Leonard, who
operated the property as a otel, known as "The lLeonard
House", This became a well known stopping place for
travelers by steamboat and sailing vessels, In 1%06,
Capt. Leonard decided to give up the hotel, e had
half of the house, 118 High Street, moved a distance
of about 15 feet, He and his family lived in that
half until death. The other half, 120 Ligh Street,
was sold to Dorchester County in 1967 and is now
occupied by the Dorchester Arts Center.

Significance:

Although altered in the 19th and 20th century,
this is one of tue older houses on Il.igh Street, dating
to 1790. Cnce joined to the house next door, this is
the most altered of the pair. 1In spite of renovation,
the Leonard houses are still of arciiitectural interest
and contribute significantly to the historic character
of High Street,
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Col. Clement Sullivane, article reprintea in the
Daily Banner, April 23, 1925
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120 HIGH STREET PLC 151/497
CAMBRIDGE, MARYLAND

Add to Cathe Moore'smaterial:

This house served as the residence of James C. Leonard, who purchased
118-120 High Street from the estate of William Thomas in 1894. Leonard divided
the house into present dat 118 and 120 High Street between 1894 and 1896. 1In 1911
Leonard conveyed a life estate in the house to his wife. Following her death the
house was devised to their #laughter Rebecca C. Leonard (later Ziegler). 1In 1967,
she sold the property to the Dorchester County Commissioners. The house now serves
as the headquarters for the Borchester Arts Center.

Both this house and 118 High Street represent older houses that had been
expanded and remodeled in the 1890's. Both reflect the prosperity of Cambridge in
thelate nineteenth century when both of their owners became wealthy in the oyster

business.

Sources:
Dorchester County Courthouse, Cambridge, Maryland
Court Records.
Land Records.
Will Record.s
Dorchester County Office Building, Cambridge, Maryland

AssessmentRecords.

Research by:
Terrance Walbert
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